
1 | P a g e  

 

APPROVED MINUTES 

OF THE CITY  

COUNCIL WORK SESSION  

CITY OF EAST GRAND FORKS 

TUESDAY, MAY 27, 2014 - 5:00 P.M. 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 

 

The Work Session of the East Grand Forks City Council for May 27, 2014 was called to order by 

Council President Craig Buckalew at 5:08 P.M. 

 

CALL OF ROLL:   

 

On a Call of Roll the following members of the East Grand Forks City Council were present: 

Mayor Lynn Stauss, Council President Craig Buckalew, Council Vice President Greg Leigh, 

Council Members Clarence Vetter, Dale Helms, Henry Tweten, Mark Olstad, and Chad Grassel. 

 

Dave Aker, Parks & Recreation Superintendent; Brad Bail, City Engineer; Nancy Ellis, City 

Planner; Ron Galstad, City Attorney; Earl Haugen, MPO Executive Director; Mike Hedlund, 

Police Chief; Charlotte Helgeson, Library Director; Gary Larson, Fire Chief; David Murphy, 

City Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer; Megan Nelson, Executive Assistant; and Jason Stordahl, 

Public Works Director. 

 

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM: 

 

The Council President Determined a Quorum was present 

 

1. 2015 City Project No. 1 Stabilization Ponds Cost Savings – Brad Bail 

 

Mr. Bail informed the council that Mr. Boppre was not able to attend the meeting.  He stated 

how they have started working on the plans and specs for the stabilization ponds and have started 

looking at ways to cut costs.  He explained how one possible way of doing that is by purchasing 

land north of the golf course.  He added that if the council would like to move forward with this 

plan soil borings will be done to ensure there is good clay that can be used for the project.  He 

stated how this area could also be used to spread bio-solids and reviewed the process of this area 

having crops on for two years that could only be used for animal feed and not human 

consumption.     

 

Council member Tweten stated how the council should examine other areas to the north of the 

ponds and not use that area.  Council member Olstad asked where the clay was coming 

originally.  Mr. Bail said it would be the contractor’s job to bring in the material needed for the 

project so it would depend on where they get the material from and how many miles it will need 

to be hauled.  Council member Olstad commented they would have to see how much it would 

cost to have the material hauled in to determine if and how much the cost savings would be.  

Discussion followed about how the city engineers are working on getting an estimate from a 

construction company on the cost of hauling in clay, how the proposed site could possibly be 



2 | P a g e  

 

used by the golf course in the future, and how the soiling borings would cost approximately 

$10,000.  Council President Buckalew stated the council would need more information before 

moving forward.  Mr. Bail stated they will look into this as well as other options and bring them 

back before the council for review.   

 

2. MPO Rental of Additional Space – Earl Haugen 

 

Mr. Haugen explained how the MPO rents space in City Hall and with changes in the Grand 

Forks City Hall they are looking for additional space in East Grand Forks.  He stated how he had 

worked with Nancy and found space on the second floor.  Council President Buckalew asked if 

they would need services such as a phone.  Mr. Haugen stated that was included in the contract.  

Council member Helms asked if this room was being used for.  Ms. Ellis stated the auditors use 

this room when they are here otherwise it is open.   

 

This item will be referred to a City Council Meeting for action.   

 

3. Musgrove Property Assessment – David Murphy 

 

Mr. Murphy stated there was no action required at this time from the council and this item was 

brought up by Mr. Wagner, the county assessor.  He explained how a house was built on two 

parcels but when it was sold there was only one parcel listed on the deed and this had been sold 

twice.  He added that since only one parcel was sold the developer continued to receive tax 

statements but didn’t pay them so that parcel is going into tax forfeiture.  Mr. Murphy said he 

was bringing this up to the council because of the special assessments that were on that parcel 

that had not been paid.  He stated how he will be looking into what options the City has to collect 

those specials.  Council member Helms asked if the title company should be responsible.  Mr. 

Murphy stated that is something that will be looked into and added that he will be speaking with 

Mr. Galstad about the options the City has. 

 

4. Station 2 Overhead Doors – Gary Larson 

 

Chief Larson stated the doors at Station 2 were in need of replacement because of all of the 

issues they were having with them.  He stated that after he had received the bids it was 

discovered the eyes also needed to be replaced so that was not included in the bid but would be 

an additional $250 per eye to replace the four eyes.  He explained they did not need new rails or 

new openers.  He recommended accepting the bid from Valley Door for $7258 for replacement 

of the doors.  Council Vice-President Leigh stated they need to have the doors working. 

 

This item will be referred to a City Council Meeting for action.    

 

5. 421 Rescue Rebuild – Gary Larson 

 

Chief Larson stated that this truck is the main rescue truck and that it goes to every call.  He 

explained how this truck carries everything that is not in the other trucks like the Jaws of Life.  

He added how this truck gets lots of use which is not reflected in the mileage but it is reflected in 

the hours on the truck.  Chief Larson said how the box is in good shape but there is need for 



3 | P a g e  

 

more power.  He stated how moving forward with this rebuild would be a cost savings because it 

will make the truck last longer and will be cheaper than purchasing a new truck.  He explained 

how the manufacturer of the truck had completed the work on this truck so he only got a bid 

from them for this job.   

 

Council member Tweten asked how much was in the increase in calls.  Chief Larson stated they 

had responded to 289 more calls in 2013 than they did in 2012.  Chief Larson stated there are 

going into technical and high risk rescues with the beet plant, the bean plant, and with more oil 

coming into the area.  Council member Tweten asked if they were going to training.  Chief 

Larson stated that he had received a letter stating more trains would be coming through East 

Grand Forks going to Duluth.  He explained they will be sending four guys to Colorado on 

scholarships from Union Pacific which are $3500 per person to learn how to deal the situations 

with more oil coming through the community.  He also added that he has been asking but still 

has not been told how many trains would be coming through East Grand Forks.  Ms. Ellis stated 

the MPO was trying to follow up with that as well but aren’t getting any definitive answers from 

BNSF.  She stated that right now there are six to seven trains a day.  Discussion followed about 

how the there isn’t much information because of the hazardous materials that are being 

transported and how this is affecting all traffic.   

 

This item will be referred to a City Council Meeting for action.  

 

6. Purchase of a Dial-a-Ride Bus – Nancy Ellis 

 

Ms. Ellis stated that in 2014 the City is receiving $101,000 in additional funds for the purchase 

of a Dial-A-Ride vehicle.  She explained how the vans did not meet the standards so they will be 

purchasing a bus and how she is working with two companies to determine what bus should be 

purchased.  She said the local share was included with the budget for this year and added that she 

had met with staff in Grand Forks who is interested in covering the local share and will be 

bringing it to their council to vote on.  Ms. Ellis stated that the council has to pass a resolution 

for the purchase and asked for the council to do so to keep this process moving forward.  Council 

member Helms asked if this was over and above the bus that goes around town.  Ms. Ellis stated 

that was the fixed route bus and explained this bus would be replacing a van. 

 

This item will be referred to a City Council Meeting for action. 

 

7. Community Development Office & Staff Setup – Nancy Ellis 

 

Ms. Ellis stated the council had asked for a setup of the Community Development Office.  She 

explained how she went through the list of duties and based on those duties she would need three 

positions which would be the Community Development Director, a Code Enforcement Officer, 

and make a change from the Permit Technician to an Administrative Assistant to cover more 

duties.  Council Vice-President Leigh asked about the Code Enforcement Officer position.  Ms. 

Ellis asked the council how they would like to move forward with building inspections.  She 

explained there has not been a noticeable difference in cost between having a full time person 

and the service but there are 4 inspectors available so regardless if someone is on vacation there 

is always an inspector available.  She said the difference is that there isn’t always someone in the 



4 | P a g e  

 

office.  She added that she is satisfied with the service that has been received from Indepth 

Inspection.   

 

Council member Tweten stated that the City needs a full time building inspector and how Mr. 

Spoor should come in to inform the council what is needed in that position.  He added that he 

would vote against an extension to the contracted services.  He also suggested the Council 

President along with two other council members work with the department while it is in 

transition.  Mayor Stauss stated that it would be very good to have a full time inspector but if 

there were savings to stay with the contracted service he would support keeping the contracted 

service.  Ms. Ellis pointed out that would all depend on the number of permits issued and the 

contract for building inspection services.  Council Vice-President Leigh stated that he would like 

to extend the contract for another six months so the City doesn’t get locked into something.   

 

Council Helms asked who wrote up the contract and decided on the terms.  Ms. Ellis stated that 

Mr. Huizenga drafted the contract.  Mr. Bail added that Mr. Huizenga looked over the amount of 

permits for five years, allowed them to collect all of the plan check fees because that can only be 

done by the building inspector, and with office hours, had set up an hourly fee.  He stated how 

they would be willing to look at renegotiating the contract.  Discussion followed about the need 

for someone full time, being against hiring someone and then sending them to training, and what 

the break even points were for both hiring a full time inspector versus staying the a contracted 

service.  Ms. Ellis pointed out the permit technician’s salary is paid from the permit fees and 

added that an Administrative Assistant would be paid out of more than just permits since they 

would be working in planning and transit.   

 

Council President Buckalew stated that people have told him they are very happy with the 

service and having the ability to use four people is better than one.  Ms. Ellis stated that she will 

need a decision from the council.  Council Vice-President Leigh suggested working up a new 

contract, review the jobs and job duties, localize them to the City, and that he doesn’t have any 

issues with the hiring of an administrative assistant.  Ms. Ellis stated the administrative assistant 

position will be filled after the person in the permit technician position retires.  Ms. Ellis added 

how they will bring this back to the next work session because if the council does not want to 

move forward with the contracted services the process will have to hire a full time building 

inspector.   

 

8. Review of Three Department Head Positions – David Murphy 

 

Mr. Murphy explained how independent study on the positions of Community Development 

Director, Fire Chief, and Park & Recreation Director was included in the 2014-2015 labor 

contract.  He explained the process they had to complete to have this study completed.  He then 

reviewed the results stating based on comparables a change should be made to the Community 

Developer Director’s position from a grade 18 step 4 to a grade 20 step 4.  Council member 

Vetter asked why the position wouldn’t start on step 1.  Discussion followed about how this 

position has changed over the past year and how the general practice is to move to the same step 

as previously on.  Council President Buckalew asked to have clarification from the labor 

attorney.  Mr. Murphy stated he would get the clarification.  

 



5 | P a g e  

 

9. Unpublished City Lots  – Nancy Ellis and Megan Nelson  

 

Ms. Ellis explained to the council staff would like to complete an inventory of city lots.  She 

stated how there have been inquires on some lots that don’t have a value on them.  She added 

how along completing an inventory of the lots, staff would also like to prepare a policy to follow 

when selling lots.  Discussion followed about the lot sale fund which was set up for dyke 

maintenance and how that needs to be incorporated in that policy and why lot sales were being 

taken care of in the EDHA.  Ms. Ellis asked to put a hold on the sale of any lot that isn’t 

currently listed to the public on the city website.  Council President Buckalew asked how much 

time was needed.  Ms. Ellis said to start with 30 days and staff was hoping to bring this back on 

the June 24
th

 Work Session.     

 

10. Riverwalk Center Sale Update – David Murphy 

 

Mr. Murphy stated that Ms. Ellis had been dealing with this and turned it over to her.  Ms. Ellis 

explained how a replat was being completed of the Riverwalk Center which will show the utility 

and access easements.  She also said how the City will need to vacate the alley that runs through 

the center of the building.  She added that Mr. Galstad was working with the EDA on the release 

of the building.  Mayor Stauss asked what it was being sold for.  Council Vice-President Leigh 

stated $830,000.  Ms. Ellis stated that there items that Mr. Moore is asking to have addressed 

before the purchase if final.  Discussion followed about the parking lot and it was suggested to 

look into a parking lot maintenance fee to help with repairs and maintenance.  

 

Council member Tweten suggested the council go around and look at all City property to see 

what needs to be addressed.  Mr. Murphy also mentioned it had been suggested to hire an outside 

attorney to handle the loan situation.  Discussion followed.  Council member Vetter asked to 

have a contract brought to the next meeting for the council to review and decide at that time.  

 

ADJOURN: 

 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COUNCIL MEMBER LEIGH, SECONDED BY COUNCIL 

MEMBER GRASSEL, TO ADJOURN THE MAY 27, 2014 COUNCIL MEETING OF 

THE EAST GRAND FORKS, MINNESOTA CITY COUNCIL AT 6:32 P.M. 

 

Voting Aye: Grassel, Vetter, Helms, Buckalew, Tweten, Olstad, and Leigh 

Voting Nay: None. 

 

 

_______________________________________________ 

David Murphy, City Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer 

 


